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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2006

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Chen Hsong Holdings Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The principal place of business of the
Company is located at 13-15 Dai Wang Street, Tai Po Industrial
Estate, Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was principally involved in the
manufacture and sale of plastic injection moulding machines
and related products.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s ultimate holding
is Cititrust Limited,
incorporated in the Bahamas. Chen Hsong Investments Limited

company (Bahamas) a company
(“CH Investments”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong, is

the Company’s immediate holding company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CONSOLIDATION

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(which also include Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles
generally accepted

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They

in Hong Kong and the disclosure

have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for the investment at fair value through profit or loss,
which has been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand (HK'000) except when
otherwise indicated.
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(continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 March 2006. Adjustments are made to bring into line
any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being
the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All
significant intercompany transactions and balances within the
Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders in the results and net assets of the Company’s
subsidiaries.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2006

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The following new and revised HKFRSs affect the Group and

are adopted for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements:

HKAS 1
HKAS 2
HKAS 7
HKAS 8

HKAS 10
HKAS 12
HKAS 14
HKAS 16
HKAS 17
HKAS 18
HKAS 19
HKAS 20

HKAS 21

HKAS 23
HKAS 24
HKAS 27
HKAS 28
HKAS 32

HKAS 33
HKAS 36
HKAS 37

HKAS 38
HKAS 39

HKAS 39

Amendment

)

Presentation of Financial Statements

Inventories

Cash Flow Statements

Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors

Events after the Balance Sheet Date

Income Taxes

Segment Reporting

Property, Plant and Equipment

Leases

Revenue

Employee Benefits

Accounting for Government Grants and
Disclosure of Government Assistance

The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange

Rates

Borrowing Costs

Related Party Disclosures

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates

Financial Instruments: Disclosure and
Presentation

Earnings per Share

Impairment of Assets

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets

Intangible Assets

Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement

Transition and Initial Recognition of
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities



2006
Annual Report £ %R

B 7% 3R 3k MY & Notes to Financial Statements

—EERF=ZA=+—H 31 March 2006

22 A RRBIAZEBHMBRE 2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG

HAZHE (&) FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
BBV BREER
o5k AR A HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment
$3% XSG HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
BEERE
F45R HE-BEED HK-Int 4 Leases — Determination of the Length of
THAE Lease Term in respect of Hong Kong
HERE Land Leases
EWMBE BT EAE2-7-8110" The adoption of HKASs 2, 7, 8, 10, 12, 14, 16, 18, 19, 20, 23,
12-14-16-~18+19: 20" 23~ 27, 28, 33, 37, 38 and HK-Int 4 has had no material impact on
27 - 28-33:37 38 NEBE: the accounting policies of the Group and of the Company, and
ZEFARHAEERARAG 2S5 the methods of computation in the Group’s and the Company’s
BERMEAREE RAR A 2% ® financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2006

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

The impact of adopting the HKFRSs is summarised as follows:

(a)

(b)

HKAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 1 has affected the presentation of minority interests
on the face of the consolidated balance sheet,
consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and other disclosures. In addition, in
prior years, the Group’s share of tax attributable to
associates was presented as a component of the Group’s
total tax charge/(credit) in the consolidated income
statement. Upon the adoption of HKAS 1, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition results of associates is
presented net of the Group’s share of tax attributable to
associates.

HKAS 17 - Leases

In prior years, leasehold land and buildings held for own
use were stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses.

Upon the adoption of HKAS 17, the Group’s leasehold
interest in land and buildings is separated into leasehold
land and buildings. The Group’s leasehold land is
classified as an operating lease, because the title of the
land is not expected to pass to the Group by the end of the
lease term, and is classified as prepaid land lease
payments, while leasehold buildings are classified as part
of property, plant and equipment. Prepaid land lease
payments under operating leases are initially stated at cost
and subsequently amortised on the straight-line basis over
the lease term. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and buildings elements,
the entire lease payments are included in the cost of the
land and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant
and equipment.
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2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(b) HKAS 17 - Leases (continued)

This change in accounting policy has had no effect on the
consolidated income statement and retained profits. The
comparative amounts in the consolidated balance sheet as
at 31 March 2005 have been restated to reflect the

reclassification of leasehold land.

(c) HKAS 21 - The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange

Rates

HKAS 21 had no material impact on the Group. As
permitted by the transitional provisions of HKAS 21,
goodwill arising in a business combination prior to 1 April
2005 and fair value adjustments arising on that acquisition
are deemed to be in the currency of the Company. In
respect of acquisitions subsequent to 1 April 2005, any
goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of
the assets and liabilities are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign operation and are translated at the closing

rate in accordance with HKAS 21.

(d) HKAS 24 - Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 24 has expanded the definition of related parties

and affected the Group’s related party disclosures.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2006

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(e) HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 - Financial Instruments

(1)

Available-for-sale equity investments

In prior years, the Group classified its investments in
unlisted equity securities as long term investments
which were held for non-trading purposes and were
stated at cost less any impairment losses on an
individual basis.

Upon the adoption of HKASs 32 and 39, these
investments held by the Group as at 1 April 2005 of
HK$124,057,000 were designated as available-for-
sale equity investments.

After initial
investments are measured at fair values with gains or

recognition, available-for-sale equity
losses being recognised as a separate component of
equity until the investment is sold, collected or
otherwise disposed of or until the investment is
determined to be impaired at which time the
cumulative gain or loss previously reported in equity is
included in the income statement.

The fair value of investments that are actively traded
in organised financial markets is determined by
reference to quoted market bid prices at the close of
business at the balance sheet date. For investments
fair value is
Such
techniques include using recent arm’s length market

where there is no active market,
determined wusing valuation techniques.
transactions; reference to the current market value of
another instrument which is substantially the same;
and discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing
models.

-
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2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(e)

v

HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 - Financial Instruments (continued)

(i)

Available-for-sale equity investments (continued)

When the fair value of these unlisted equity securities
cannot be reliably measured because (i) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment, or (ii) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
these securities are stated at cost less any impairment
losses on an individual basis.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is any objective evidence that an
available-for-sale equity investment is impaired as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the assets (“loss events”), and
that the loss event has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows that can be reliably estimated.

If there is objective evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss that had been recognised directly in
equity shall be removed from equity and recognised in
the income statement. The amount of the loss
recognised in the income statement shall be the
difference between the acquisition cost and current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that available-
for-sale equity investment previously recognised in the
income statement.

The adoption of HKAS 39 has not resulted in any
change in the measurement of these equity
investments.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2006

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(e)

HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 - Financial Instruments (continued)

(ii)

(ifi)

Investment at fair value through profit or loss

In prior years, the Group’s short term unlisted
investment in arbitrage fund was classified as short
term investment and was measured at fair value on an
individual basis, with unrealised gains and losses
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Upon the adoption of HKASs 32 and 39, this
investment held by the Group as at 1 April 2005 of
HK$21,480,000 was designated as investment at fair
value through profit or loss.

The adoption of HKAS 39 has not resulted in any
change in the measurement of this investment.

Held-to-maturity investments

In prior years, investments in unlisted held-to-maturity
notes were classified as long term and short term
investments and were stated at cost less any
impairment losses on an individual basis.

Upon adoption of HKASs 32 and 39, these
investments are classified as held-to-maturity
investments and are measured at the amortised cost
using effective interest method less any impairment
losses.

The adoption of HKAS 39 has not resulted in any
change in the measurement of these investments.
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2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

(f)

%)

HKFRS 2 - Share-based Payment

In prior years, no recognition and measurement of share-
based payment transactions in which employees (including
directors) were granted share options over shares in the
Company were required until such options were exercised
by employees, at which time the share capital and share
premium account were credited with the proceeds
received.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 2, when employees
(including directors) render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”), the cost
of the equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which the instruments are granted.

The main impact of HKFRS 2 on the Group is the
recognition of the cost of these transactions and a
corresponding entry to equity for employee share options.
The revised accounting policy for share-based payment
transactions is described in more detail in note 3

“Summary of significant accounting policies” below.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of
HKFRS 2 under which the new measurement policies have
not been applied to (i) share options granted to employees
on or before 7 November 2002; and (ii) share options
granted to employees after 7 November 2002 but which
had vested before 1 April 2005.

The effects of adopting HKFRS 2 are summarised in note
2.4 to the financial statements.
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(g) HKFRS 3 - Business Combinations and HKAS 36 — Impairment

of Assets

In prior years, goodwill and Negative Goodwill arising on
acquisitions prior to 1 April 2001 were eliminated against
the consolidated retained profits and credited to
consolidated capital reserve, respectively, in the year of
acquisition and was not recognised in the consolidated
income statement until disposal or impairment of the
acquired business.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1 April 2001
was capitalised and amortised on the straight-line basis
over its estimated useful life and was subject to
impairment testing when there was any indication of
impairment. Negative Goodwill was carried in the
consolidated balance sheet and was recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a systematic basis over
the remaining average useful life of the acquired
depreciable/amortisable assets, except to the extent it
related to expectations of future losses and expenses that
were identified in the acquisition plan and that could be
measured reliably, in which case, it was recognised as
income in the consolidated income statement when the
future losses and expenses were recognised.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 3 and HKAS 36, goodwill
arising on acquisitions is no longer amortised but subject
to an annual impairment review at the cash-generating unit
level (or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired). Any impairment loss recognised for goodwill is
not reversed in subsequent years.

=
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2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
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(g) HKFRS 3 - Business Combinations and HKAS 36 — Impairment

v

of Assets (continued)

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
the acquirees’ identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of the acquisition of subsidiaries
and associates (previously referred to as “Negative
Goodwill”), after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in the consolidated income statement.

The transitional provisions of HKFRS 3 have required the
Group to eliminate as at 1 April 2005 the carrying amounts
of accumulated amortisation with a corresponding
adjustment to the cost of goodwill and to derecognise the
carrying amounts of Negative Goodwill (including that
remaining in consolidated capital reserve) against retained
profits. Goodwill previously eliminated against consolidated
retained profits remains eliminated against consolidated
retained profits and is not recognised in the consolidated
income statement when all or part of the business to which
the goodwill relates is disposed of or when a cash-
generating unit to which the goodwill relates becomes
impaired.

The effects of the above changes are summarised in note
2.4 to the financial statements. In accordance with the
transitional provisions of HKFRS 3, comparative amounts
have not been restated.
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KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements. Unless otherwise stated, these
HKFRSs are effective for accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2006:

HKAS 1 Capital Disclosures
Amendment

HKAS 19 Actuarial Gains and Losses, Group Plans
Amendment and Disclosures

HKAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign
Amendment Exchange Rates — Net Investment

in a Foreign Operation

HKAS 39 The Fair Value Option
Amendment

HKAS 39 and Financial Guarantee Contracts
HKFRS 4
Amendments

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement

contains a Lease

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

The HKAS 1 Amendment shall be applied for accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007. The revised
standard will affect the disclosures about qualitative information
about the Group’s objective, policies and processes for
managing capital; quantitative data about what the Company
regards as capital; and compliance with any capital
requirements and the consequences of any non-compliance.
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KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 7 incorporates and further extends the disclosure
requirements of HKAS 32 relating to financial instruments. This
HKFRS shall be applied for accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2007.

In accordance with the amendments to HKAS 39 regarding
financial guarantee contracts, financial guarantee contracts are
initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently measured
at the higher of (i) the amount determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 and (ii) the amount initially recognised, less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance
with HKAS 18.

HKAS 19 Amendment, HKAS 21 Amendment, HKAS 39
Amendment regarding the fair value option, and HK(IFRIC)-Int
4 shall be applied for accounting periods beginning on or after
1 April 2006; while HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 shall be applied for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 May 2006.

Except as stated above, the Group expects that the adoption of
the pronouncements listed above will not have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements in the period of
initial application.
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31 March 2006

2.4 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF CHANGES IN

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) B —ETFTHEFWA—HBHR=-F (a) Effect on the consolidated balance sheets as at 1 April
EREZRA=Z+—HWHE/E 2005 and 31 March 2006
EEBERzEE
Raewe
Effect of adopting
EREHEN EREeHEN ERMHEEE ERUEES
FI7%4 FNERK  EHF2EH ERIE3%
HKAS 17# HKASs 32 & 39* HKFRS 2# HKFRS 3*
ALEHEE/
AERIaEE
Discontinuance
RENE IREXH  of amortisation
hEy  HEREZE  of goodwilll
RAtLHAER Change in  Equity-settled  derecognition
HR%eHE Effect of new policies Prepaid land  classification ~ share option of Negative @t
(#m/ (B)) (Increase/(decrease)) lease payments of investments  arrangements Goodwill Total
(BETr) (HK$'000)
R-EEREMA-H At 1 April 2005
BE Assets
ng BRREE Property, plant and
equipment (55,309) - - - (55,309)
BRIHAER Prepaid land lease
payments 53,665 - - - 53,665
BHE Negative Goodwill - - - 2,763 2,763
At MEERRE Available-for-sale
equity investments - 124,057 - - 124,057
REKRE Long term investments - (124,057) - - (124,057)
RAFERARR Investment at fair value
LRE through profit or loss - 21,480 - - 21,480
BERE Short term investment - (21,480) - - (21,480)
% BRFER Deposits, prepayments and
EhERER other receivables 1,644 - - - 1,644
2,763
Bz Equiy
EAGE Capital reserve - - 1,480 (2,285) (805)
REGH Retained profits - - (1,480) 5,048 3,568
2,763
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2006

2.4 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF CHANGES IN

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a) Effect on the consolidated balance sheets as at 1 April
2005 and 31 March 2006 (continued)

Begg
Effect of adopting
EREIEN BBENEN FBEUERE  EBUEBRE
F17%4 $2HRI%  ERE%H R E3%
HKAS 174 HKASs 32 & 39*  HKFRS2#  HKFRS 3*
RILBEEE/
RERIaEE
Discontinuance
REDE MAREXA  of amortisation
WEd  MERERE  of goodwilll
BALHEER Change in  Equity-settled  derecognition
FHRzYE Effect of new policies Prepaid land  classification  share option of Negative o
(#m/ (5D)) (Increase/(decrease)) lease payments  of investments  arrangements Goodwill Total
(B¥Fr) (HK$'000)
RZZ2ERE=A=t-H At 31 March 2006
2E Assets
0¥ BERRE Property, plant and
equipment (54,206) - - - (54,206)
ERLHEN Prepaid land lease
payments 52,493 - - - 52,493
BE Goodwill - - - 11,070 11,070
e Negative Goodwill - - - 2,842 2,842
AN EERRE Available-for-sale
equity investments - 124,057 - - 124,057
RERE Long term investments - (124,057) - - (124,057)
e BRFER Deposits, prepayments and
£l R other receivables 1713 - - - 1,713
13912
BB Capital reserve - - 2354 (2,285) 69
REGEF Retained profits - - (2,354) 16,197 13,843
13,912

Y HEBER-_ZEERFINA—H
HE 3K
# o HEEIEEWEN

v

H*

Adjustments taken effect prospectively from 1 April 2005

Adjustments/presentation taken effect retrospectively
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—EERFZA=1+—H 31 March 2006

24 B BRRBH2HERE (&) 2.4 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

b) H—ZEETWEMXMA - K (b) Effect on the balances of equity as at 1 April 2004 and
—_EZIFNA-—HBHHER 1 April 2005
HREZEE
Rz &g
Effect of adopting
BEMB®RE ERUBERE
ERIE25% RIS 35
HKFRS 2 HKFRS 3
DU B X 1
MR R HE BHERIEEE
FRRZEE Effect of new policies Equity-settled share Derecognition of #et
(B, GED)) (Increase/(decrease)) option arrangements  Negative Goodwill Total
(BTFiT) (HK$°000)
R-ZEZNE At 1 April 2004
mA—A
NG Capital reserve 740 - 740
R % A Retained profits (740) - (740)
R-ZEZRF At 1 April 2005
mA—A
ERGEE Capital reserve 1,480 (2,285) (805)
REBREF Retained profits (1,480) 5,048 3,568

2,763
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2006

2.4 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF CHANGES IN

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

HEZ-_EEXER=-ZEZRH (c) Effect on the consolidated income statements for the
F=A=1+—-HLFEHKEW years ended 31 March 2006 and 2005
mR2EE
Rye e
Effect of adopting
EREEL BRMERE BRMERE
F1% BB B8 ERAIE3S
HKAS 1 HKFRS 2 HKFRS 3
RIEBEEE/
BREEHEAKRA
Discontinuation
of amortisation
EEHE AR MRS £ of goodwill/
BERANHER MEREZE  recognition of
Share of post-tax Equity-settled Negative
profits less losses share option Goodwill as @t
FHRzEE Effect of new policies of associates  arrangements income Total
(B%Fir) (HK$'000)
BE-ZZXE Year ended 31 March 2006
ZRA=t+-BLFE
TR 3 Increase in administrative
expenses - (874) - (874)
Hi Q& WD Decrease in other
operating expenses - - 11,070 11,070
HAn oA R s 12 o Increase in other income
and gains - - 79 79
JE(EHEE A A Increase in share
i AR B B AN of profits less
losses of associates 23 - - 23
I N Increase in tax (23) - - (23)
BB, (RD) A Total increase/(decrease)
in profit - (874) 11,149 10,275
BREKBFEM/ Increase/(decrease) in basic
CRid) O&f) earnings per share (HK cents) - 0.1) 18 17
GRBERTEN Increase/(decrease) in diluted
OB ) CBI) earnings per share (HK cents) - (0.1) 1.7 16
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24 B BRRBH2HERE (&) 2.4 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF CHANGES IN
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c) HBZ-_ZEEXRFR-ZEZER (c) Effect on the consolidated income statements for the
F=ZA=1+—-HLEEEHEW years ended 31 March 2006 and 2005 (continued)
BRZ2EE (E)

Rinesg
Effect of adopting
BRI ERBBERE  BEMBEE
F1% ERAIE2H ERIE3R
HKAS 1 HKFRS 2 HKFRS 3

RIBHEE/

BREHEAKA

Discontinuation

of amortisation

FERBE N RH MR X A3 of goodwill/
BEFAER MEREZE  recognition of

Share of post-tax Equity-settled Negative
profits less losses share option Goodwill as @t
FBKz¥E Effect of new policies of associates arrangements income Total
(B¥TT) (HK$'000)
BE-ZEZ1F Year ended 31 March 2005
ZAZt-BLEFE
T Increase in administrative
expenses - (740) - (740)
g A=UNS] Increase in share of profits less
o B B losses of associates 66 - - 66
IR Increase in tax (66) - - (66)
B Bt Total decrease in profit - (740) - (740)
BREABRMRD Decrease in basic
(&) earnings per share (HK cents) - 0.1) - 0.1)
GREFRIAD Decrease in diluted
(&) earnings per share (HK cents) - (0.1) - (0.1)
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2006

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies
the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s interests in subsidiaries are stated
at cost less any impairment losses.

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary, in which the
Group has a long term interest of generally not less than 20% of
the equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and reserves
of associates is included in the consolidated income statement
and consolidated reserves, respectively. The Group’s interests in
associates are stated in the consolidated balance sheet at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual arrangement,
whereby the Group and other parties undertake an economic
activity. The joint venture operates as a separate entity in which
the Group and the other parties have an interest.

%)



M IS AR M EE

—EERF=A=1+—H

FEREHBRREBE (&

BEAQT (&

BETZAFTYLZALEHHE  RE
BEAZEE  AEBEREER
BREEREECEE - KA/ E
RAEKZBENRRGEE 2F
Mok JDHEETREZEZE
BURBAEHHEIGNED -

BERFZEBERENT

(a) MARAHGERREEER
REEZE T mEGE - AS
ERAIMERMBRRRIRE

(b) MADAHALAAEEHE
Je gyt R R RE - (B EE K
MEAEEEMEAT LR
20%  WAIMHHITHEE AP E
H o BASAREAB S A
AIERIE 5 5k

(c) RFEFBGFTEAEINN - fid
ARBIHAERREENEE
BAEEEMEARLR20% - I
B H LR ) R AR AT
BEAFEN  NAERRTIE
REmERERRE -

BE
WENBARELEZEHE  RRK
BERARERABAASERGE
FrErR SR EERBBZ ATE
B28E -

Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2006

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Joint ventures (continued)

The joint venture agreement between the venturers stipulates
the capital contributions of the joint venture parties, the
duration of the joint venture entity and the basis on which the
assets are to be realised upon its dissolution. The profits and
losses from the joint venture’s operations and any distributions
of surplus assets are shared by the venturers, either in
proportion to their respective capital contributions, or in
accordance with the terms of the joint venture agreement.

A joint venture is treated as:

(a) a subsidiary, if the Company has unilateral control, directly
or indirectly, over the joint venture;

(b) an associate, if the Company does not have unilateral or
joint control, but holds, directly or indirectly, generally not
less than 20% of the joint venture’s registered capital and
is in a position to exercise significant influence over the
joint venture; or

(c) an equity investment, accounted for in accordance with
HKAS 39, if the Company holds, directly or indirectly, less
than 20% of the joint venture’'s registered capital and has
neither joint control of, nor is in a position to exercise
significant influence over, the joint venture.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents
the excess of the cost of the business combination over the
Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquirees’
identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed as at the date of acquisition.

&
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2006

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill on acquisitions for which the agreement date is on or
after 1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on acquisition is initially recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet as an asset at cost and is
subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of
units. Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is so
allocated:

e represents the lowest level within the Group at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes;
and

° is not larger than a segment based on either the Group’s
primary or the Group’s secondary reporting format
determined in accordance with HKAS 14 “Segment
Reporting”.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units), to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less
than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.

=
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31 March 2006

3. TEEHBERBE & 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(continued)

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill on acquisitions for which the agreement date is on or
after 1 January 2005 (continued)

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit
is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation.
Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on
the relative values of the operation disposed of and the portion
of the cash-generating unit retained.

An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Goodwill previously eliminated against the consolidated reserves

Prior to the adoption of Statements of Standard Accounting
Practice (“SSAP”) 30 “Business Combinations” in 2001,
goodwill arising on acquisition was eliminated against the
consolidated retained profits in the year of acquisition. Upon
the adoption of HKFRS 3, such goodwill remains eliminated
against the consolidated retained profits and is not recognised
in the income statement when all or part of the business to
which the goodwill relates is disposed of or when a cash-
generating unit to which the goodwill relates becomes impaired.

Excess over the cost of business combinations (applicable to
business combinations for which the agreement date is on or
after 1 January 2005)

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
acquirees’ identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of acquisition of subsidiaries, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in the income statement.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2006

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

3

the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (ii) has an interest in the
Group that gives it significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) has joint control over the Group;

the party is an associate;

the party is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or its holding company;

the party is a close member of the family of any individual
referred to in (a) or (c);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly-controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting
power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any
individual referred to in (c) or (d); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of the employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a
related party of the Group.



M IS AR M EE

—EERF=A=1+—H

Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2006

3. TEEHBERBE & 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(continued)
Impairment of assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets and goodwill),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is calculated as the higher of the asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs
to sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
income statement in the period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, however not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation), had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
impairment loss is credited to the income statement in the
period in which it arises.

=
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2006

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the income statement in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be
clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an
increase in the future economic benefits expected to be
obtained from the use of an item of property, plant and
equipment, and where the cost of the item can be measured
reliably, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of
that asset or as a replacement.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings in Hong Kong — Over the lease terms

Buildings outside Hong Kong — 15 to 60 years

Plant, machinery, furniture — 2 to 15 years

and other equipment

Freehold land is not depreciated.

7
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31 March 2006

3. TEEHBERBE & 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet
date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the income statement in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents plants under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction
during the period of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2006

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the income statement as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources
to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed
when incurred.

Investments and other financial assets
Applicable to the year ended 31 March 2005

Investments in debt securities which are intended to be held
until their maturity for redemption are classified as held-to-
maturity securities and are stated at amortised cost less any
impairment losses, on an individual investment basis.

Investments in listed and unlisted equity securities which are
intended to be held for continuing strategic reasons or a long
term purpose, are classified as investment securities and are
stated at costs less any impairment losses, on an individual
investment basis.
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(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Applicable to the year ended 31 March 2005 (continued)

When an impairment has occurred, the carrying amount of the
securities is reduced to its fair value, as estimated by the
directors, and the amount of the impairment is charged to the
income statement in the period in which the impairment arises.
When the circumstances and events which led to an
impairment cease to exist and there is persuasive evidence that
the new circumstances and events will persist for the
foreseeable future, the amount of the impairment previously
charged is credited to the income statement to the extent of the
amount previously charged.

Securities investments, other than held-to-maturity securities
and investment securities, are classified as other investments
and are carried at their fair values at the balance sheet date.
The unrealised gains or losses arising from changes in fair
values of these investments are credited or charged to the
income statement in the period in which they arise.

Held-to-maturity securities and investment securities with a
remaining maturity of more than one year are classified as long
term investments. Held-to-maturity securities and other
investments with a remaining maturity within one year are
classified as short term investments.

Applicable to the year ended 31 March 2006

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale
financial assets, as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the
case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss,
directly attributable transaction costs. The Group determines
the classification of its financial assets after initial recognition
and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this
designation at the balance sheet date.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2006

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Applicable to the year ended 31 March 2006 (continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group
commits to purchase the asset. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets classified as held for trading are included in
the category “financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss”. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Gains or
losses on investments held for trading are recognised in the
income statement.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-maturity
when the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity. Investments intended to be held for an undefined
period are not included in this classification. Other long term
investments that are intended to be held to maturity, such as
bonds, are subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Amortised cost is computed as the amount initially recognised
minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest method of any
difference between the initially recognised amount and the
maturity amount. This calculation includes all fees and points
paid or received between parties to the contract that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
all other premiums and discounts. For investments carried at
amortised cost, gains and losses are recognised in the income
statement when the investments are derecognised or impaired,
as well as through the amortisation process.

i
1S



M IS AR M EE

—EERF=A=1+—H

Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2006

3. TEEHBERBE & 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

REREMEMEE (&)
HARBE _FTENF=ZA=1+—
HiFFZ (%)

B R EKFE

&R K e WK TR T [ E Bk F] B E Y
ReREMETEMSPLERELZ
FRTESREE - ZFEENEE
MERTRAEHRBERANALR - B
Yoz Ko BB 7 & R K B W IR R
55 0 KR (B B IR 8 S AR Fr AT
AWz -

R EEBEE

AfHESREEAN LT RIFL
MRABSFZIFNTESREE -
ZEEREEREAAHRLERAL
B AEREAM=EERA - RY)
THRR  AHEESREERRD
FEFE  BANIBRERSBEL
MEERNBEEREHMERRARE
EREWETIRME - U 5T AT R
o 2 W R BN B BRF Al
&~ -

3 EmIRAEH 2 XA FETEER
SwiE - RRAASOZERERER
FEMNMGEEERKERE LR
% EE N SRR 2 AT B T e
BEFEEARGFAFER A
% F w8 7 oI RN R fRRE B 1R
5l B o

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Applicable to the year ended 31 March 2006 (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Such assets are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in
the income statement when the loans and receivables are
derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation
process.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity securities that are
designated as available-for-sale or are not classified in any of
the other three categories. After initial recognition, available-for-
sale financial assets are measured at fair value, with gains or
losses recognised as a separate component of equity until the
investment is derecognised or until the investment is
determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss previously reported in equity is included in the income
statement.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be
reliably measured because (i) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (ii) the probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, such securities are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2006

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Applicable to the year ended 31 March 2006 (continued)

Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in
organised financial markets is determined by reference to
quoted market bid prices at the close of business at the
balance sheet date. For investments where there is no active
market, fair value is determined using valuation techniques.
Such techniques include using recent arm’s length market
transactions; reference to the current market value of another
instrument, which is substantially the same; a discounted cash
flow analysis; and option pricing models.

Impairment of financial assets (applicable to the year ended
31 March 2006)

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there
is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans
and receivables or held-to-maturity investments carried at
amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or
through the use of an allowance account. The amount of the
impairment loss is recognised in the income statement.
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(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (applicable to the year ended
31 March 2006) (continued)

Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If it is
determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or
not, the asset is included in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and that group is collectively
assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues
to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed. Any
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the
income statement, to the extent that the carrying value of the
asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an
unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value
because its fair value cannot be reliably measured has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on
these assets are not reversed.
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31 March 2006

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (applicable to the year ended
31 March 2006) (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in the income statement, is
transferred from equity to the income statement. Impairment
losses on equity instruments classified as available-for-sale are
not reversed through the income statement.

Derecognition of financial assets (applicable to the year
ended 31 March 2006)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised where:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired;

e the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from the
asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset and either (i) has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (ii) has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (applicable to the year
ended 31 March 2006) (continued)

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or
purchased option (including a cash-settled option or similar
provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement is the amount of the transferred asset
that the Group may repurchase, except in the case of a written
put option (including a cash-settled option or similar provision)
on an asset measured at fair value, where the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair
value of the transferred asset and the option exercise price.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value
of the consideration received less directly attributable
transaction costs.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2006

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities (applicable to the year
ended 31 March 2006)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the income statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in
the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, bank balances
and bank deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management. For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and
bank balances comprise cash on hand, bank balances and
bank deposits, which are not restricted as to use.
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(continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognised in the income statement, or in equity if it relates to
items that are recognised in the same or a different period
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
interests in subsidiaries and associates, where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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31 March 2006

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised except:

e where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with interests in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Conversely, previously unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at each balance sheet date and are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised.
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(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold;

(b) service fee income, when the services have been rendered:

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset; and

(d) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2006

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Pre-operating expenses

Pre-operating expenses represent expenses incurred prior to
the commencement of commercial operations and are charged
to the income statement when incurred.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as
operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under the operating leases are charged to the income statement
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are recognised as a
liability only when they have been approved by the shareholders
in a general meeting and declared.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s Bye-Laws grant the directors the
authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared.
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3. TEEHBERBE & 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions are initially recorded using the functional currency
rates ruling at the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the balance
sheet date. All differences are taken to the income statement.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and
associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. At
the balance sheet date, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date
and, their income statements are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The
resulting exchange differences are included in a separate
component of equity in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount
recognised in equity relating to that particular foreign operation
is recognised in the income statement.
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2006

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the

cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong

Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the

cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas

subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into

Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for

the year.

Employee benefits

(a) Pension schemes

)

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a certain percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

Prior to the MPF Scheme becoming effective, the Group
operated a defined contribution retirement benefits
scheme (the “DCRB Scheme”) for those employees who
were eligible and had elected to participate in the DCRB
Scheme. The DCRB Scheme operates in a similar way to
the MPF Scheme, except that when an employee leaves
the Group prior to his/her interest in the DCRB Scheme
vesting fully, the ongoing contributions payable by the
Group would be reduced by the relevant amount of the
forfeited employer contributions.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2006

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Employee benefits (continued)

(a) Pension schemes (continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) are required to participate in a
central pension scheme (the “Central Scheme”) which is
operated by the local municipal governments. The
contributions payable by these subsidiaries to the Central
Scheme, which are based on a certain percentage of the
salaries of their employees, are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the Central Scheme.

As required by the Taiwanese Labor Standard Law, the
Group’s subsidiaries in Taiwan operate a funded defined
benefit pension scheme (the “DBP Scheme”) and make
monthly contributions to the retirement fund to meet
employees’ retirement and termination benefits
entitlements. The fund is administered by the Employees’
Retirement Fund Committee (the “Committee”) and is
deposited under the Committee’s name with a government
approved financial institution, which acts as the trustee.
The expected costs of providing pensions under the DBP
Scheme are charged to the income statement over the
periods during which the employees provide the related
services to the Group’s subsidiaries in Taiwan.
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31 March 2006

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Employee benefits (continued)

(b) Share-based payment transactions
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3,

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at
which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an
external valuer using a binomial model. In valuing equity-
settled transactions, no account is taken of any
performance conditions, other than conditions linked to the
price of the shares of the Company (“market conditions”),
if applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant
employees become fully entitled to the award (the “vesting
date”). The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at each balance sheet date until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period
has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge
or credit to the income statement for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at
the beginning and end of that period.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2006

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

(b) Share-based payment transactions (continued)

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for awards where vesting is conditional upon a
market condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective

of whether or not the market condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance conditions are
satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification, which increases the total
fair value of the share-based payment arrangement, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the
date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new
awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

®,



B IS AR MY RE

—®ERE=A=+—A

3. FESTHERBE (&)

BERA (&)

(b) BERBENZIRZEZ (B)

AEEERMNEBWBRSE
B1J 58 2557 B 10 2 10 ASUHE S A S A
BB RR - B EER KR
SHEANFREANR_TT_F
T-ACHAZERHER-F
THFEMNA—HAHEKREBRN
BRESZHOHRB - UK -FF
EFEMNA-—HBRZERHNE
Pt o

BERA

{8 B RN B8 A B s R R
ARXH e

2006
Annual Report £ %R

Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2006

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

(b) Share-based payment transactions (continued)
The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of
HKFRS 2 in respect of equity-settled awards and has
applied HKFRS 2 only to equity-settled awards granted

after 7 November 2002 that had not vested on 1 April
2005 and to those granted on or after 1 April 2005.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the income
statement in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2006

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key

sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date,

that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to

the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

financial year, are discussed as below.

(a)

(b)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the
value in use of the cash-generating units to which the
goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash
flows from the cash-generating unit and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill
as at 31 March 2006 was HK$94,931,000 (2005:
HK$94,931,000). More details are given in note 17.

Estimation regarding provision for inventories

The management of the Group reviews the inventory aging
analysis on a periodic basis for those aged inventories.
This involves comparison of the carrying value of the aged
inventory items with the respective fair value less costs to
sell. The purpose is to ascertain whether provision is
required to be made in the financial statements for any
obsolete and slow-moving items. In addition, physical
counts on all inventories are carried out on a periodic basis
in order to determine whether provision needs to be made
in respect of any obsolete and defective inventories
identified.
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—EERF=ZA=1+—H 31 March 2006
4. EEGIHEE (@) 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)
St FHEBEZE (&) Estimation uncertainty (continued)
(c) EWEZGREZEKRNEMHZ (c) Estimation regarding allowance for trade and bills receivables
1 &t
ETREHEHRERKEIR In determining whether allowance for trade and bills
EREREREER  AfBEEE receivables is required, the Group takes into consideration
R AR 2 BRER AR S Te i B T B the aging status and the likelihood of collection. Following
Mo EFERERRE  XEEHB the identification of potential bad and doubtful debts, the
EAEEHBEERTPH WU responsible personnel will discuss with the relevant
WEREHEmEEEER - T X customers and report to management on the recoverability.
AlgedeE 2 R R TS 2 ER E Specific provision is only made for those receivables that
B are unlikely to be collected.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2006

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of two segment
formats:

(i) on a primary segment reporting basis, by geographical
segment; and

(ii) on a secondary segment reporting basis, by business
segment.

The principal activity of the Group is the manufacture and sale
of plastic injection moulding machines and related products,
which is managed according to the geographical location of
customers. Each of the Group’s geographical segments, based
on the location of customers, represents a strategic business
unit that offers products to customers located in different
geographical areas.

The Group’s geographical segments are as follows:

(a) The PRC (including Mainland China and Hong Kong);

(b) Taiwan; and

(c) Other overseas countries (including other Asian countries,
the Middle East, Americas and Europe).

In determining the Group’s geographical segments, revenue and
assets are attributed to the segments based on the location of
the customers.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2006

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(a) Geographical segments based on the location of

customers

The following tables present revenue, results, assets,
liabilities and certain expenditure information for the
Group’s geographical segments.

W58 XEDE
Segment revenue Segment results
2006 2005 2006 2005
(E751)
(Restated)

R (BEEE) PRC (including Hong Kong) 1,383,094 1,279,635 271,139 261,590

=) Taiwan 219,101 229,387 21,464 24,413
H 485N Other overseas countries 353,139 358,461 57,730 54,319

1,955,334 1,867,483 350,333 340,322
AW A KU EE  Unallocated income and gains 9,161 1,622

ERAB DM Corporate and unallocated

expenses (53,076) (50,503)

RSP N Finance costs (7,139) (4,748)
i =/ Share of profits less losses

s ARLE 1R of associates (185) (1,821)

B B A1 5 A Profit before tax 299,094 284,872
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TEHER (&) 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
(a) BEFHME S E (&) (a) Geographical segments based on the location of
customers (continued)
EESE BESE
Segment assets Segment liabilities

AEEH Group
(CEMTF ) (HK$'000) 2006 2005 2006 2005
TE(B2EEE) PRC (including Hong Kong) 1,986,019 1,826,045 328,310 265,815
= Taiwan 204,891 191,254 77,351 71,913
H A )G N R Other overseas countries 215,173 212,232 81,083 76,028

2,406,083 2,229,531 486,744 413,756

REEE R R Interests in associates 3,135 27,464 - -
AEDEE Unallocated assets 68,403 41,540 - -
rEHEE Unallocated liabilities - - 144,137 185,740
2,477,621 2,298,535 630,881 599,496
Other segment information
FEREH HibERS (MA) /ER EXEX
Depreciation and Other non-cash Capital
amortisation (income)/expenses expenditure
X 58 Group
(B¥%Fir) (HK$'000) 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
(&7
(Restated)
hE (BREER) PRC (including Hong Kong) 52,406 57,032 22,829 37,114 58,516 86,944
=) Taiwan 2,739 2,459  (3,491) 1,845 699 783
=R uhisINCTE Other overseas countries 3,035 3,638 (2,006) 2,680 1,395 1871

58,180 63,129 17,332 41,639 60,610 89,598
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31 March 2006

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Geographical segments based on the location of assets

EEDHE
Segment assets
AEE Group
(B For) (HK$'000) 2006 2005
FE (BIEEE) PRC (including Hong Kong) 1,990,092 1,828,823
== Taiwan 415,991 400,708

\ 7
RS EE Unallocate

2,406,083 2,229,531

T Interests in associates 3,135 27,464

d assets 68,403 41,540

2,477,621 2,298,535

EAREX
Capital expenditure
AEE Group
(CE#For) (HK$'000) 2006 2005
FE (BIEEE) PRC (including Hong Kong) 59,226 87,905
ae Taiwan 1,384 1,693
60,610 89,598
(c) %958 (c) Business segments

REBMIORIA Ez e K EE
TIREAREREE T RN
FEM Hit YEZIXRB
DRI e

Over 90% of the Group’s revenue and assets are
attributable to the manufacture and sale of plastic injection
moulding machines and related products. Therefore, no
analysis by business segment is presented.

6. W= 6. REVENUE

W (MRAEBZ 28X BFNR
ZHWEREZFE BRERENRES
i MAEREEQAGARMZR
% o

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the net
invoiced value of goods sold during the year, after allowances
for returns and trade discounts, excluding intra-group
transactions.
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

A) THIEIE - (crediting):
2006 2005
(E71))
(B For) (HK$'000) K1&# Notes (Restated)
EHFERAK Cost of inventories sold 1,371,498 1,267,060
e Depreciation 15 56,517 50,392
FENTHEER 2R Recognition of prepaid land
lease payments 16 1,663 1,696
HEME - BEREHE (Gain)/loss on disposal of items of
2 CaF) /KB E property, plant and equipment (228) 1,577
Y HE MR Write-off of items of property, plant
and equipment 15 174 47
EES $EN Amortisation of goodwill* 17 - 11,041
et ESHHKAR, Excess over the cost of a business
WRAERAZ BFHE combination/Negative Goodwill
recognised as income** (464) (385)
RO T REFEE Minimum lease payments under operating
O rxEEEST H leases of leasehold land and buildings 10,344 10,785
MELFAZEEA Research and development costs 14,635 12,999
% AN B & Auditors’ remuneration 1,349 1,229
BIRMNER(ES=Me Employee benefits expenses (excluding
Froh—BIEE9) - directors’ remuneration — note 9):
T& &% Wages and salaries 199,129 193,909
ARHES S BS IR EE B Equity-settled share option expenses 874 740
RIS ETEIHE K Pension scheme contributions 12,118 10,475
JEWE 5 & ZHRRR (Write-back of allowance)/allowance for
CEFRL) HEE trade and bills receivables (2,638) 16,946
GEEHBFE Provision for inventories, net 25,840 21,694
PEH =R HEE Foreign exchange differences, net (11,546) 4,173
LB WA Interest income (1,975) (1,622)
HE—BEQE Z2mF Gain on disposal of an associate (6,812) -
HENAFEFAER Loss on disposal of an investment
ZIEZEE at fair value through profit or loss 1,010 -
LERFZRHEE Gain on disposal of a held-to-maturity
2 4 A investment (424) -
EEMEHEREZ Unrealised loss on unlisted
REEIR ET 1B short term investments - 1,020

%
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Notes to Financial Statements
31 March 2006

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

O RFrEBHECBEERARE *  The amortisation of goodwill was included in “Other operating

RZTHMEEIHIRA -

expenses” on the face of the consolidated income statement.

= FNBEACESHOREBER **  The excess over the cost of a business combination/Negative
BRAZ BN ECBRERES W E Goodwill recognised as income in the consolidated income
xZ[HWARWEIA - statement for the year is included in “Other income and gains” on

the face of the consolidated income statement.

8. BERA 8. FINANCE COSTS
rEE Group
CEBFor) (HK$'000) 2006 2005
RAFREHEES Interest on bank loans wholly
RITERF R repayable within five years 7,139 4,748
9. EEXME 9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
KB EMARARBEBQAGEHFE 161 Directors’ emoluments for the year disclosed pursuant to the
1 FRESWSFEENOT : Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance are as follows:
2006 2005
AEH Group (&%)
(BT or) (HK$'000) (Restated)
e Fees:
FEHITES Non-executive directors - -
BUIERITES Independent non-executive directors 360 300
E g Other emoluments:
M AR EY WS Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 12,147 11,720
FIA A IEAL Performance related bonuses 16,598 12,983
VARG HE S RTHYBE AR HEUL 28 Equity-settled share option benefits 581 601
RIS R Pension scheme contributions 48 48
29,734 25,652

9
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EFE - ARREBRETS
EHBNEFREHORBETHER
B AFAEHRERMB®RER M E
Bl WEBBEEHENRERTHE
B HEAFERRLBAE Y8
RELAEEMEOIE -

(@) BYFHTES

AEREXNTEINRITES

Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2006

9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

In prior years, certain directors were granted share options, in
respect of their services to the Group, under the share option
schemes of the Company, further details of which are set out in
note 31 to the financial statements. The fair value of such
options, which has been amortised to the income statement,
was determined as at the date of the grant and was included in
the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

e T during the year were as follows:

rEE Group

CEMFor) (HK$'000) 2006 2005
PR BB Yt 5T A Mr. Johnson Chin Kwong TAN 120 120
Anish LALVANI &4 Mr. Anish LALVANI 120 120
PR B E & Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN 120 60

360 300

AERZVEEMHE N TE
VIATES (ZTTRHF :
&) -

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2005: Nil).

%
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B 7% ¥R 3% B &F Notes to Financial Statements
—EERF=ZA=1+—H 31 March 2006
9. EEME (&) 9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b) BITESE (b) Executive directors
2006
4
EER DR A
ENFE E3] iR Bffe
Salaries, BaEA hE  EER
allowances Performance Equity-settled Pension  BH& 4t
&  and benefits related share option scheme Total
(BETr) (HK$'000) Fees in kind honuses benefits contributions remuneration
BEfET Dr. Chen CHIANG - 4,490 5,814 224 - 10,528
BEART Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG - 2,757 5,669 149 12 8,587
e Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG - 1,997 2,741 75 12 4,825
EWREE Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG - 1,704 1733 75 12 3,524
REELE Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG - 1,200 640 58 12 1910
- 12,148 16,597 581 48 29,374
2005
§4-
EER DR A
ENFE E3] iR E Bffe
Salaries, B Wi HEER
allowances Performance Equity-settled Pension  M& 4t
1&  and benefits related share option scheme Total
(BETr) (HK$'000) Fees in kind honuses benefits contributions remuneration
BEfET Dr. Chen CHIANG - 4,490 5,574 233 - 10,297
BEART Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG - 2,757 5,430 154 12 8,353
e Mr. Chi Kin CHIANG - 1,569 652 78 12 2,311
EWREE Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG - 1,704 684 78 12 2478
REELE Mr. Sam Hon Wah NG - 1,200 643 58 12 1913
- 11,720 12,983 601 48 25,352

o,
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10.

11.

EEME (®)

RERATEEFTHRIRATREL
MEe (ZETRHF &) o

REER > ARA—REFTHEHR
RZZEZE=F=-A+—BREZH
P& 4 % 15 332,000l AR Al 2 & @
B FEIER B ISR MM E31E
5 o ZHEHATFEEUANKELEHR
AE - YREaERPEERESRH
EEMe 2 WES -

o

FARKELERTESTHE U
BT MAREE S ERMARSE
By 2 BN - SBERRAR(E -

TEEESMEZEER

FAREEESHEe 2 BERER
Z(ZEZRF - ER)EF - A
& O R E5I B IS R M oD o

Bi 1R

AEBRFRETFAREREZE
R BEN - BOLBEREFABFEBAE
HEE(CTTRF  E) - Hitig
[ 2 o M) A I8 IR AN 68 | 48 /8 S 7
FEBR2BRITAD  RERIE
ffl - BMIRITRREEHE -

Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2006

10.

11.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments during the year (2005: Nil).

During the year, a director of the Company exercised share
options, which were granted on 11 March 2003 to acquire
332,000 ordinary shares of the Company, details of which are
set out in note 31 to the financial statements. The fair value of
such options, which has been amortised to the income
statement, was determined as at the date of the grant and
included in directors’ remuneration disclosures.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group,
or as compensation for loss of office.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included five
(2005: five) directors, details of whose emoluments are set out
in note 9 to the financial statements above.

TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided as the Group did
not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for the
year (2005: Nil). Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have
been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,
interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

S,
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11. TAX (continued)

2006 2005
KEE Group (&%)
(BT T) (HK$'000) (Restated)
BNER - Current:
REERIAZ H Charge for the year
BB Hong Kong - -
H A 3b [ Elsewhere 31,875 30,009
BAFEZIRER Overprovision in prior years (3,976) (3,039)
IERE — 3129 Deferred — note 29 (1,073) (4,562)
AEEBEZTH Tax charge for the year 26,826 22,408

PERHAT B ABRARARR] RE
MEARMEBRR ZEEREAE
(REHIG%ZE33%) Z2HIBEFRX -
URBERREFEZRBART Z

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax using the statutory rates, ranging from 15% to 33%, for the
countries in which the Company and its subsidiaries are
domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates is as

HERWMT - follows:
2006 2005

REHE Group (7))
(BT oT) (HK$'000) (Restated)
B A5t AT 22 A Profit before tax 299,094 284,872
BEAEMEFHEZHIA Tax at the statutory tax rate 82,912 82,807
& 51l & 17 sk 0 77 B 4 Tax concessions/lower tax rates for

Z IS ER, BIR X specific provinces and local authority (57,312) (72,367)
FE(REE 2 N EEFIRE B Profits less losses attributable to associates 23 66
RESHIYIELEHIE  Effect on opening deferred tax

e of changes in rates - 2,809
AAMB T H Expense not deductible for tax 3,646 7,704
HEGNIEIE 2 WA Income not subject to tax (6,633) (4,522)
RMERZ REERIERE  Tax losses for the year not recognised 11,959 9,213
FHRBTHMKEIESE Tax losses from previous periods utilised (3,793) (263)
B ERE B AR IR Adjustments in respect of current tax of

2P previous periods (3,976) (3,039)
AEEBEZTH Tax charge for the year 26,826 22,408

o~
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11.

12.

BIE (#)

AEBETHRIELE 2B AR T
RONEREDLE  ZEMBRAIZ
BEMEER L EFEER M
BIFTEH - MARER 2 =FRIER
B50% 2 REFER - RELIER %
HfEwmE - ZEMB AR SRR
15%ZE27% N E/MFTISH - ik
ZEEFXTEANP RIS EHRNBM
EEE 7B AR -

A ERRMAIMERBERER
23,0007 (ZZEZ R4 : B %66,000
) CERESSRERANTE
B DA MBE R -

RARBEEFEARGEFEER

Bt ARRABHRERBEE_ZTT
NEZA=Z+—BzRREREA
A JFEAR F a7 )8 # 123,339,0007T
(ZZZRF : B8 117,241,0007T
(i=&%))) (MFzE32) o

Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2006

11.

12.

TAX (continued)

Certain of the Group’s subsidiaries operating in the PRC are
Foreign Investment Enterprises and are exempted from the
income tax of the PRC for two years starting from the first
profitable year of operations, and are entitled to a 50% relief
from the income tax of the PRC for the following three years.
Upon expiry of the tax relief period, the PRC subsidiaries will be
subject to the income tax rates ranging from 15% to 27%, being
the preferential tax rates applicable to these subsidiaries
operating in the open coastal areas of the PRC.

The share of tax credit attributable to associates amounting to
HK$23,000 (2005: HK$66,000) is included in “Share of profits
less losses of associates” on the face of the consolidated
income statement.

NET PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

The net profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2006 dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company was HK$123,339,000 (2005:
HK$117,241,000 (as restated)) (note 32).

N,
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—EERF=ZA=1+—H 31 March 2006
13. RE 13. DIVIDENDS
(B ¥ F o) (HK$’000) 2006 2005
B IR e 1T i EE AR Additional final dividend
ZEEINKRERRR B due to exercise of share options 48 122
R AR BB AR AR Interim dividend of HK$0.05
BHEO.05TL (ZEZERHF ¢+ (2005: HK$0.05) per ordinary share
B #0.057T) 30,926 30,876
H R T mE £ Additional interim dividend
ZBBINR AR S due to exercise of share options - 19

BERHKREERE @MY Proposed final dividend of HK$0.15
BEO0ISTL (ZEZRF © (2005: HK$0.14) per ordinary share
B#0.147T) 92,793 86,546

123,767 117,563

REEREFEIARAREALRRA The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
RRAMKRT o REAFASH approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
HEEFTAMEER - annual general meeting.

&y
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A XRRAEBEFEABRLEER
B

gl

BERERNBNEBIIREBEFALRRD
AERFE ARGAEEEMEE
272,450,000 (ZZEZTFHF : B
259,886,0007T (&£ E7%)) RFRE
BT BR 2 MNEFHEE
618,512,247 (Z T T A F
617,503,244%) 5T HEFT 1S °

SREFRANSEIBEBEFALR
AIERFAEARGAEREMNEE
272,450,000 (—“ZEZEFHF : B
259,886,0007T (&£ E %)) kN F
) $1626,229,947f% (T R F
628,049,691f%) L@k (BIEtE &k
EXAMNAMAFREZITL®ER
ZINHEFH618,512,247 (=&
TR E : 617,503,2440%) KB &
NABITE BREEZ2HBIER
B 1768 2 hnteF19807,717,700
B (ZZZTRHF ¢ 10,546,4470%) &
BR)GTEMS -

Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2006

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY

HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts is based
on the Group’s net profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company for the year of HK$272,450,000 (2005:
HK$259,886,000 (as restated)) and on the weighted average
number of 618,512,247 (2005: 617,503,244) ordinary shares
in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amounts is based
on the Group’s net profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company for the vyear of HK$272,450,000 (2005:
HK$259,886,000 (as restated)) and on the weighted average
number of 626,229,947 (2005: 628,049,691) ordinary shares,
being the weighted average number of 618,512,247 (2005:
617,503,244) ordinary shares in issue during the year as used
in the basic earnings per share calculation and the weighted
average number of 7,717,700 (2005: 10,546,447) ordinary
shares assumed to have been issued at no consideration on the
deemed exercise of all share options outstanding during the
year.

e
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 March 2006

KAERLH
REF R
HERT
Freehold BE - #E Ki
land and JELET
buildings, EBIE Plant, machinery,
T5E Group and leasehold Construction furniture and @t
(B¥%FT) (HK$'000) buildings in progress  other equipment Total
RZEEREMA-A At 1 April 2005

KA Cost 473,807 53,673 608,058 1,135,538

ZHIE Accumulated depreciation (110,313) - (371,360) (481,673)

REFE Net carrying amount 363,494 53,673 236,698 653,865
R-ZTREMA-R- At 1 April 2005,

BEHBRENE net of accumulated depreciation 363,494 53,673 236,698 653,865
HE Additions 2,617 23,430 34,563 60,610
hE Disposals - - (299) (299)
it Write-off - - (174) (174)
g% Transfer 52,462 (71,003) 18,541 -
REEHERRE Depreciation provided during the year (12,710) - (43,807) (56,517)
EjAR Exchange realignment (1,017) 1,049 3,906 3,938
RZEERFZAZ+-8" At 31 March 2006,

BEHREHE net of accumulated depreciation 404,846 7,149 249,428 661,423
RZZENEZA=ZT-H At 31 March 2006

A Cost 528,017 7,149 663,322 1,198,488

ZithE Accumulated depreciation (123,171) (413,894) (537,065)

REFE Net carrying amount 404,846 7,149 249,428 661,423

o
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15. 1% - MERRE (&) 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

—ETRF=A=+—H 31 March 2005

KA%ELH
REF R
HEET
Freehold BE - B8 &
land and Rt HRE @t
buildings, EEIR Plant, machinery, Total
b3 1] Group and leasehold Construction furniture and (E3)
(B%F1) (HK$'000) buildings in progress  other equipment (Restated)
R-ZEMEMA-A At 1 April 2004

e Cost 457,775 90,099 487,120 1,034,994

Zithe Accumulated depreciation (99,835) - (330,063) (429,898)

REFE Net carrying amount 357,940 90,099 157,057 605,096
R-ZZZMEMA-F At 1 April 2004,

EHBZTE net of accumulated depreciation 357,940 90,099 157,057 605,096
HE Additions 8,800 50,604 30,19 89,598
e Disposals 9) - (2,036) (2,045)
it Write-off - - (47) (47)
B Transfer (3,590) (87,061) 90,651 -
REENERE Depreciation provided during the year (9,567) - (40,825) (50,392)
iR Exchange realignment 9,920 31 1,704 11,655
R-ETRFZA=+-8" At 31 March 2005,

EMBEHTE net of accumulated depreciation 363,494 53,673 236,698 653,865
R-ZTRF=A=1-H At 31 March 2005

R Cost 473,807 53,673 608,058 1,135,538

Z2ithe Accumulated depreciation (110,313) - (371,360) (481,673)

RHFE Net carrying amount 363,494 53,673 236,698 653,365

AREBZEZTREMURE)

B WARHROFER -

B A SN

Kong and was held under medium term leases.

-
20

The Group’s construction in progress was situated outside Hong
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15. % - BERRE (&) 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
BIERN A AREEMFA KA ERE The Group’s freehold land and buildings, and leasehold
THREF  REEEF 2z buildings included above are analysed as follows:
™~
2006 2005
REH Group (&%)
CB¥For) (HK$'000) (Restated)
ZHETF Leasehold buildings held under:
B 2B L Medium term leases in Hong Kong 48,698 51,919
EEBUINEE 2 Medium term leases outside Hong Kong
R HREZ 49 262,805 211,957

311,503 263,876

TE BB AN R 2 5K A Freehold land and buildings held
EELHRETF outside Hong Kong 93,343 99,618

404,846 363,494

N,
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15. 1% - MERRE (&) 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

ERREAMEE
AT Company Furniture and
CE®TFor) (HK$'000) other equipment
—EERE=A=1+— 31 March 2006
RZETHFMNA—H At 1 April 2005,

EMBRRETTE net of accumulated depreciation 1,231
REFZIERE Depreciation provided during the year (166)
R-ZEBEEXF=ZA=+—8" At 31 March 2006,

EMBRRANE net of accumulated depreciation 1,065
R_EERF=ZA=+—H At 31 March 2006

BN Cost 11,541

EFHITE Accumulated depreciation (10,476)

REFE Net carrying amount 1,065
—EERE=A=1+—H 31 March 2005
RZZEZMNFENHA—H At 1 April 2004

B 7R Cost 11,557

i Accumulated depreciation (10,143)

BRmEFE Net carrying amount 1,414
R-EZNFIPA—H - At 1 April 2004,

EMBRRETTE net of accumulated depreciation 1,414
REFZIERE Depreciation provided during the year (183)
RZETRF=A=+—8" At 31 March 2005,

Bk R E net of accumulated depreciation 1,231
R_EERF=A=+—H At 31 March 2005

B AR Cost 11,557

REITE Accumulated depreciation (10,326)

REFE Net carrying amount 1,231

£3
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16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

2006 2005
KEH Group (&%)
(B¥For) (HK$'000) (Restated)
AU A—HEEREE Carrying amount at 1 April
AN AT 2 7R As previously reported - -
EmBE BT 2L Effect of adopting
E175% (ffaE2.2(b) ) HKAS 17 (note 2.2(b)) 55,309 57,005
=gl As restated 55,309 57,005
RARFERER Recognised during the year (1,663) (1,696)
E = FE Exchange realignment 560 -
M=ZA=+—HBHMERMEE  Carrying amount at 31 March 54,206 55,309
EHIER D B R TR Current portion included in
Ald c BRRIER deposits, prepayments and
H b B UL BR X other receivables (1,713) (1,644)
JERT BRER 1D Non-current portion 52,493 53,665

AEEE LA FAELIMBEER

The Group’s prepaid land lease payments included above are

DT analysed as follows:

2006 2005
rEH Group (E3)
(B¥For) (HK$'000) (Restated)
et ER Prepaid land lease payments held under:

BB 2B L Medium term leases in Hong Kong 25,458 26,075

BB R 2 Medium term leases
R HRE 49 outside Hong Kong 28,748 29,234
54,206 55,309

5
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17. GOODWILL AND NEGATIVE GOODWILL

EEE
rEE Group [EES Negative WEr
(BT ) (HK$'000) Goodwill Goodwill Total
—EEXREFE=ZA=+—H 31 March 2006
RZETHFMNA—H At 1 April 2005
B - wnRT 2 %R Cost, as previously reported 116,858 (3,854) 113,004
RNE B s LR Effect of adopting
IR 2HE HKFRS 3
(FrsE2.2(g)) (note 2.2(g)) (21,927) 3,854 (18,073)
94,931 - 94,931
Z2ETEE - WRTE W Accumulated amortisation,
as previously reported 21,927 (1,091) 20,836
RNE BT ERE AR Effect of adopting
E3F o E HKFRS 3
(Mts¥2.2(g)) (note 2.2(g)) (21,927) 1,091 (20,836)
RZZEZERAFMA—H Cost and carrying amount
RZEEREFE at 1 April 2005 and
=A=+—H 31 March 2006
ZRAR K EREE 94,931 - 94,931

(3
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17. GOODWILL AND NEGATIVE GOODWILL (continued)

EmE

AEE Group [EES Negative st
CE¥TT) (HK$'000) Goodwill Goodwill Total
—ZEEHRF=A=+-—H 31 March 2005
R-ZZEWFMA—H At 1 April 2004

BN Cost 116,858 (3,854) 113,004

RETHEE Accumulated amortisation (10,886) 706 (10,180)

FEREE Net carrying amount 105,972 (3,148) 102,824
R-ZZEZEWFMA—HAH Cost at 1 April 2004,

2R Bk RET S net of accumulated amortisation 105,972 (3,148) 102,824
NEFE () (Amortisation provided)/

R AUA recognised as income

during the year (11,041) 385 (10,656)

RZZEZRF=A=+—H At 31 March 2005 94,931 (2,763) 92,168
R-_EERF=A=+—H At 31 March 2005

DN Cost 116,858 (3,854) 113,004

RETHEE Accumulated amortisation (21,927) 1,091 (20,836)

BREFE Net carrying amount 94,931 (2,763) 92,168

E-_ZTTERF EZABBERER
BEARFEARBOEE  REBR
AERFH T FIEEREE -

RIEZT-—FRAGHAEBRELENE
305 LART - AR EE THEAR
RIMEEZERE YR =ZZTHh
FZA=-+—HUEBF ARERE
2 & ¥ A7 1,504,0007T °

In 2005, goodwill not previously eliminated against the
consolidated reserves was amortised on the straight-line basis
over its estimated useful life of 10 years.

The amount of Negative Goodwill remaining in the consolidated
capital reserve, arising from the acquisition of certain
subsidiaries prior to the adoption of SSAP 30 in 2001, was
HK$1,504,000 as at 31 March 2005.

&
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18.

HEREHE (B

R-_ZTZTRFOA-—BRAFTEM
BWEEREIRE - HEERZE
28 85 1,504,000t - I 1 B AR
HEEZHYRTEA -

[k SRS

HEXREHELEZBHEES DA T —
I8 A BETRERM - KM B R
AlZzAl Bl eI REBEEREERE
EAtEMAMBRSRERANA
FHHRBERER - LEAEET
ENIZRREBEBAIERE LI
BE - MREZENHERRT BER
AEBEFEMNRR - RERNTE
H-BeREREMAFREER
17% (B A1) - AR BRAEBE P B 2 7
Z BB -

Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2006

17. GOODWILL AND NEGATIVE GOODWILL (continued)

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 3 on 1 April 2005, such Negative
Goodwill of HK$1,504,000 was derecognised with a
corresponding adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits.

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been
allocated to a subsidiary for impairment testing. The
recoverable amount of the subsidiary is determined based on a
value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets covering a five-year period. The key
assumptions for the value in use calculation include expected
growth rate and discount rate. The financial budgets are
prepared reflecting actual and prior year performance and
development expectations. The discount rate applied to the
cash flow projections is 17% which is before tax and reflects
specific risks relating to the relevant subsidiary.

Nl NGIE ¥ . INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

AT Company

(BB For) (HK$°000) 2006 2005

JEEMRRD - EEAE Unlisted shares, at cost 172,370 172,370

JE WS BT B A B BR 3R Due from subsidiaries 789,992 793,562

JESTH B R B BR K Due to subsidiaries (300,874) (299,611)
661,488 666,321

B [ /B TZHE X T 4 1 9 K 4 [
EEFGER - BETHEB AR 2K
RERRR IR ﬁ‘%%‘J%HﬁZHﬂE‘JE\ ° K&
FHREEROHEFREAFEE-

TEMBARZHBNIIEIC3A
WE I e

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured and have no
fixed terms of repayment. The balances with certain
subsidiaries bear interest at prevailing market rates. The
carrying amounts of the balances with subsidiaries approximate
to their fair values.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out on pages
159 to 163.

N,
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19. RE&E N R 19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
rEE Group
CEBFor) (HK$'000) 2006 2005
EIEEEFE Share of net assets 8,150 28,801
JE Ui B 2 X B FRIE Due from associates 618 643
JE A B 2 N A ,TAIE Due to associates (5,633) (1,980)

3,135 27,464

R-ZEZERF=A=+—8" AR
T -FRMSAEHKENFI0
SRART ARG B2 QAN
EEZAEBBYEEBEAAGERER
[ R ABIET781,0007T ° =
TZTRFUA-—BRABT BN KR
SEAEIR  HLEBEBEE
781,000 % MUEHHE R ~ I 5 H R E
ERBHEMNOBMYEER -

)

HEEE NP ZRABRERELM
RREREBEEEBEGR KM
BEAOEENEAFEE-

PrEASEZEZRAIAR/NTE
A REEZEREAEAN -

The amount of Negative Goodwill remaining in the consolidated
capital reserves, arising from the acquisition of an additional
interest in an associate prior to the adoption of SSAP 30 in
2001, was HK$781,000 as at 31 March 2005. Upon the
adoption of HKFRS 3 on 1 April 2005, such Negative Goodwill
of HK$781,000 was derecognised with a corresponding
adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits.

The balances with the associates are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed terms of repayment. The carrying amounts of
the balances with the associates approximate to their fair
values.

All of the Group’s associates are corporate entities registered
and operating in the PRC.
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2006

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Particulars of the associates are as follows:

REEEL

ERTRAEE" EREol

BERER Percentage of
Nominal value of ownership interest FEEK
£z’ issued share/ attributable Principal
Name paid-up capital to the Group activities
36 1L T IE 72 [ = I A Ak 2£4800,000 25 BERIHE
ELEBR A RWD US$800,000 RBREER
Foshan Shunde Fu Xiong Machinery Manufacture and sale
Company, Limited® of iron casting products
#8117 = 4 58 A R % 41,520,000 25 BERIHE
BRARD US$1,520,000 HEEEE®D

Foshan Fu Xiong Foundry
Company, Limited®

Mt

(1) 3EE BB R AR E D B 157 32
EHAEBFERLRAL AR
% o

(2) BERFCABEMEAZRX A
T .

=>4

(3) FRRFU=ZA=+—HRERSE
BT EEZERAR Z®ER

(4) MEBIMEA - LA E R
TR sEE -

Manufacture and sale

of iron casting products

Notes:

(1) Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other Ernst & Young

International member firms.

(2) Such English name has been adopted by each company.

(3) The above companies use 31 March as its reporting date to

conform with its holding company’s reporting date.

(4) All the above associates have been accounted for using equity

method in these financial statements.
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19. REE&E QAR (&) 19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
TERBINZHEERRERAEE The following table illustrates the summarised financial
YN ol = Eo information of the Group’s associates extracted from their

20.

management accounts:

(BB TFr) (HK$'000) 2006 2005

BE Assets 105,565 130,184

BfE Liabilities (72,967) (47,477)

I &= Revenues 78,396 113,050

wFl (E518) Profit/(loss) 3,474 (4,041)

AHEERRRE RERE 20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE EQUITY INVESTMENTS/ LONG
TERM INVESTMENTS

rEE Group

(BT or) (HK$°000) 2006 2005

FELEMEEHERE - Unlisted investments,

B ANME at cost 170,539 170,539
SR (B B Provision for impairment (46,482) (46,482)
Bz Total 124,057 124,057
FEMAHNERERKEEARKRER The unlisted available-for-sale equity investments represent an
—8EBRA  ZAatERERE investment in a Taiwanese company, which is engaged in the
EARNMEERERCEY 12 manufacture and sale of spare parts, sub-assembly metal parts,
HEREAEE  KEBRER—A moulding products, etc. for the aerospace industry, and an
BERA MZARIRERE B indirect interest in a joint venture company, which is engaged in
RPBEEEEAYEERER investment in a commercial property in Shanghai, the PRC, for
iR o rental purposes.

o
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21. HEIPRE R EHRE 21. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS/LONG/SHORT
TERM INVESTMENTS

rEE Group
(CE¥For) (HK$'000) 2006 2005
BEIHEE, Held-to-maturity investment/
REIIRE - long term investment:
FETHREINHZ Unlisted held-to-maturity
PEEE - BHRAE commercial papers, at cost 7,800 7,800
B Provision for impairment (7,800) (7,800)
BRI ES Held-to-maturity investment/
RHRE short term investment:
FELEMBHEINHZ Unlisted held-to-maturity
BIMES - A E overseas debentures, at cost - 17,425
B Provision for impairment - (17,425)

22. UAFEFANERZRE BB 22. INVESTMENT AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR

rE LOSS/SHORT TERM INVESTMENT
rEE Group
(CE#For) (HK$°000) 2006 2005
ELEMEAES Unlisted arbitrage fund,
BAYE at fair value - 21,480

o
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23. BZE 23. INVENTORIES
rEE Group
CEBFor) (HK$'000) 2006 2005
R Raw materials 247,797 283,536
ERG Work in progress 215,567 247,362
2K @ Finished goods 103,333 123,830
566,697 654,728

24. ERE S REBERX

24.

BEFPZESBRA—RBRRRAERS

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

Trading terms with customers are either cash on delivery, bank

ROTEBEXEARE - AEERE
&5~ Bz &R RAEBREE
BE® FTHEEHRNLTR - A&
I R R B AR IR SR A2 Il 5 & 16K M i
AUWER 2 W R - BREERER
BREREK BRESZRRBERZ
REEOHSENEQFEE -

ERNLAMBHEAEENRELE
SRBBERFTBARENDHMEFPHMA
Ko BORBRENETEERR
EWE S ERBERTETE -

REERZRUES REBRERRZ
R Mfran ™ -

bills or on credit. Customers are granted credit at the discretion
of the Group, subject to their respective business strength and
creditability. The average credit period is 90 days. The Group
adopts strict control policies over credit terms and outstanding
receivables that serve to minimise credit risk. The carrying
amounts of the trade and bills receivables approximate to their
fair values.

In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s
trade and bills receivables relate to a large number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of
credit risk. Trade and bills receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the
balance sheet date is as follows:

rEH Group

(B #F o) (HK$’000) 2006 2005

R 5 HA Current 385,054 298,383

—ZENt+XK 1-90 days 98,228 68,682

N+—=—8\N+XK 91-180 days 17,517 23,578

BE—a/N\tx Over 180 days 16,634 5,223
517,433 395,866

3
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25. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

rEE b N
Group Company
(B TFr) (HK$°000) 2006 2005 2006 2005
Be MIRITEF Cash and bank balances 313,765 163,064 19,563 3,685
17 R BB B IR B B Bank deposits with
TR=1EA original maturity of
ZEBRTF R less than three months
when acquired 44,185 19,816 - -
ReMASEEY Cash and cash equivalents 357,950 182,880 19,563 3,685
R TE 2R BB B R HEm B Bank deposits with
i@ =& A original maturity of
2 EBFER (D more than three
months when acquired
(note 1) 31,829 23,837 - -
389,779 206,717 19,563 3,685
Wil ZEGFEEETRHABELEEZ Note 1:  The balance included pledged bank deposits of certain
W E QR AMFAEBE subsidiaries operating in the PRC of HK$29,498,000 (2005:
29,498,000L (ZEZTRHF : HK$ 23,586,000) securing certain loans granted by certain
75 15 23,586,000t ) H K 1 88 financial institutions in the PRC to certain third parties.
11E50 - RERERPBE T
BHREBYHE=F -
Kizt2 . RITFFHARITE BFRFE Note 2:  Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily

BREUFI S - 52 B T 58 T
AEBBRENFTRMELH—
REZEATE > LARHE
HERSERBAE  HER
ReSFEMEREORSENE
NFEE -

bank deposits rates. Short term time deposits are made for
varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the respective short term time
deposit rates. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash
equivalents and the pledged deposits approximate to their
fair values.

(3
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26. ERNEZREBRERX 26. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES
REEBZENESREBERZ An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the
B DHTT balance sheet date is as follows:
REH Group
(B #F o) (HK$’000) 2006 2005
R FI Hf Current 198,183 189,091
—ZENt+XK 1-90 days 50,670 33,391
A+—XE—EBNT+X 91-180 days 2,575 540
BE—a/N\tx Over 180 days 11,072 8,894

262,500 231,916

ERNESREBERERBITER— The trade and bills payable are non-interest bearing and are
BARTENRTRAZN - BFE normally settled at terms ranging from 60 to 90 days. The
SEEBEERZEMELNESERE carrying amounts of the trade and bills payables approximate to
NEEE - their fair values.
27. HtEH R REFAE 27. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

rEH KATF

Group Company
(BT or) (HK$°000) 2006 2005 2006 2005
BWEET & Deposits received 66,677 43,793 13 13
ENIER REMEE Accruals and other liabilities 157,567 138,047 23,331 20,423

224,244 181,840 23,344 20,436

o,
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—EERF=A=+—H 31 March 2006
28. RITER » EIKH 28. BANK LOANS, UNSECURED
BERAx
Effective
rEE Group interest rate 25
CE®For) (HK$’'000) (%) Maturity 2006 2005
RITEREER Bank loans repayable:
—F R & ENE] Within one year or
on demand 2.1% -5.1% 2006 113,094 160,004
F_FERF In the second to
(BREEREMT) fifth years, inclusive - 1,466
113,094 161,470
FIEREN B E 2 FIE Portion classified as
current liabilities (113,094) (160,004)
EMENE D Non-current portion - 1,466
AEEZEERETERNERE The carrying amounts of the Group’s unsecured bank loans
HHRENREAFEER AEBZ2E approximate to their fair values. The Group’s unsecured bank
BIHRITERAZBFEEE o loans are at floating rates.

S,
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29. IEER1E 29. DEFERRED TAX
FRANEEHEEEREEZ N The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the
™ year are as follows:
EEHREEE Deferred tax liabilities
mERFE
RRE
Accelerated MK
biN- | Group tax BfE  BIEEE Withholding Mgt
(BEFr) (HK$'000) depreciation  Provisions  Tax losses tax Total
RZEZWNFNA—H At 1 April 2004 2,671 (3,135) (2,092) 16,819 14,263
FRRRERNG, Deferred tax charged/(credited)
(FF ) 2 EERB to the income statement
during the year (70) 2,321 (1,733) 186 704
BRENHB AT Withholding tax paid on
FE BBz M repatriation of earnings
from overseas subsidiaries - - - (1,219) (1,219)
IE 5 AR Exchange realignment - - - (667) (667)
RZZETRF At 31 March 2005 and
—A=+—-8k 1 April 2005 2,601 (814) (3,825) 15,119 13,081
—TERFMA—H
FRARKEENR,/ Deferred tax charged/(credited)
(FtA) 2 BREFR to the income statement
during the year (56) (598) 3,660 (1,918) 1,088
SENRELIN =N Withholding tax paid on
I B 2 AT repatriation of earnings
from overseas subsidiaries - - - (1,388) (1,388)
BE X AR Exchange realignment - 157 165 1,278 1,600
RZZEZRE=ZA=+—H At 31 March 2006 2,545 (1,255) - 13,091 14,381

3
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29. IEEHLIR (&) 29. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

ELEHREBEEE Deferred tax assets
IS
RRE
Accelerated
rEH Group tax B BEEE @t
(B&ETFr) (HK$'000) depreciation Provisions Tax losses Total
RZEZTWFEA—H At 1 April 2004 172 15,818 467 16,457
FRRKERTA Deferred tax credited/(charged)
(0B%) 2 BRI to the income statement
during the year 227 5,181 (142) 5,266
R-ZETHF At 31 March 2005 and
ZA=+—A8k 1 April 2005
“ZETHFMA—H 399 20,999 325 21,723
FRRKERFAN Deferred tax credited/(charged)
(k) ZEREFIA to the income statement
during the year (916) 3,402 (325) 2,161
fE 5 7% Exchange realignment - 334 - 334
RZEZRF=A=+—H At 31 March 2006 (517) 24,735 - 24,218

Ny
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29. EEBLIE (&)

EEBEHEE (&)

RAEECHBEBEBRBREREE RS
¥ 175,342,000 (ZZEZTRHF B
#145,466,0007T) KR B # Bl &%
#43180,0007T (“EZH4E : B
35,208,0007t) + °] A{EK HER15 2
BEZARBBRIZERFEN - B
ZEERFZA=+—RH  ®&ERR
FERB R FI BRI R MM EENK
HABBEBMBR 2B
5,518,000 c R-ZZEETNF=ZA=
+T—H ARAIRHEBHEEE—
BRECHBAR  WERZEES
BRRAELEHEBEE - EABRE
ERMIBBEER  OBEAEE
43,180,0007T (ZEZE R F : B
34,805,0007T) KB 75 & 18 #4704
ZAEHE - EME B AERER

£ o

RZZETRF=ZA=+—H %K
N NCIDY /NI rdb S R S
DE B A AIE - AR

£
AFIR
HRZELHARE (ZFTTLF
&) -

ARBAEBRRERE RS  LE
MEETAMAER KR -
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29. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax assets (continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$175,342,000 (2005: HK$145,466,000) and in the PRC of
HK$43,180,000 (2005: HK$35,208,000) that are available for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in
which the losses arose. Tax losses of HK$5,518,000 in Hong
Kong was recognised as at 31 March 2005 to the extent that it
was probable that future taxable profit would be available
against which the unused tax losses can be utilised. As at 31
March 2006, deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses as they have arisen in the Company and
its subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time.
Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
HK$43,180,000 (2005: HK$34,805,000) that will expire within
5 years. Other losses can be carried forward indefinitely.

As at 31 March 2006, there is no unrecognised deferred tax
liability (2005: Nil) for taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings of the Group’s subsidiaries and associates
should such amounts be remitted.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

&
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30. A& 30. SHARE CAPITAL
CE®TFor) (HK$’000) 2006 2005
JATE Authorised:
1,000,000,0000% & i i% 1,000,000,000 ordinary
FHE0.107T shares of HK$0.10 each 100,000 100,000
BEETEREEAR : Issued and fully paid:
618,619,600/% (2005 : 618,619,600 (2005:
618,187,6000%) & 3@ Ik 618,187,600) ordinary
FR%E0.107T shares of HK$0.10 each 61,862 61,819

FA - BE 5 432,0000% 38 AX 42 2 38
BRENEGETBBRIE®Y1.988TT 21T
BRETE (MEE3D - Bt ABRK
B4 ¥859,0007T (Rt AEATE
A AETEREEBK0IOTZE
B 432,0000% -

During the year, the subscription rights attaching to 432,000
share options were exercised at the exercise price of HK$1.988
per ordinary share (note 31), resulting in the issue of 432,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each for a total cash consideration,
before issue expenses, of approximately HK$859,000 in
aggregate.

PN/ BRRAEEFIS Details of the movement in the Company’s issued ordinary
ZIH—F : share capital are as follows:
28T 2817 &%)
BRBEE g A = B B
Number of Issued Share
ordinary shares share premium et
in issue capital account Total
BT BT  BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-_ZEEWNFEMNA—H At 1 April 2004 616,457,600 61,646 486,926 548,572
BT 2 BEARHE Share options exercised 1,730,000 173 2,444 2,617
RZEERF At 31 March 2005 and
=A=+—HEK 1 April 2005
—EERFMA—H 618,187,600 61,819 489,370 551,189
BETTE 2 BEARHE Share options exercised 432,000 43 816 859
R-ZZTEX i At 31 March 2006
=—A=1+- 618,619,600 61,862 490,186 552,048

F
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31. B # 31. SHARE OPTIONS

KEARBRZ_TEE-FNAZ+
“HEOTZREEAFARAE LABY
LTBARFER  ARAR—NANASEF
NA=Z+BEKZERETZ
(11996F & &l]) B 42 1E I B R4
B ER 8 ([2002F518]]) - ©
1996F 5T &4 1F 158 - T151R #1996
FRrE B R LA ERE - #1996
Frral 2GR EEM T ED RS
B R IE1996F A EIRE B 2
2 IR AE AR AR 4 B G N AT IR B K
1718 o RIK1996%F 51 &) & 20024 &t
B ERELTHTFRHEAEARK
BREBEIMRNBRERELEREC#
| o

2002F 5Bl 2 FBHIEH M T ¢
(a) BW

HEERZ2EARAKNEEE
A R R B BT T LA SR
KB

(b) BEA

() ANEBEEMAAKE SAE A Z
P& A% 3R (1R #5 2002F 5t &1 2
TEF) Sk EBBCRE S 2
ERRAFZ :

(@) EAEE T HRENT
HIEHTT, BREEME
VIHRTES) RER
(F w22 B kR
B =%

(b) EE{ERAZMEMA

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 23 August 2002, the share
option scheme adopted by the Company on 30 August 1996
(the “1996 Scheme”) was terminated and a new share option
scheme (the “2002 Scheme”) was adopted. Upon termination
of the 1996 Scheme, no further share options can be granted
thereunder but in all other respects, the provisions of the 1996
Scheme remained in force and all share options granted prior to
such termination continued to be valid and exercisable in
accordance therewith. Share options under the 1996 Scheme
and the 2002 Scheme do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meeting.

The particulars of the 2002 Scheme are set out below:

(a) Purpose

As rewards or incentives for the contribution or potential
contribution to the Group from the eligible participants.

(b) Participants

(i) (a) any director (whether executive or non-executive,
including any independent non-executive
director) and employee (whether full time or part
time) of, or

(b) any individual for the time being seconded to
work for,

any member of the Group or any controlling
shareholder (as defined under the 2002 Scheme) or
any company controlled by a controlling shareholder;

oy
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—EERFZA=1+—H 31 March 2006
31. B AE (&) 31. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
(b) BHEA (&) (b) Participants (continued)
(il BEXSETMAKBEXT (ii) any holder of any securities issued by any member of
AT 22 A% A% B o 178 % A% R 4% the Group or any controlling shareholder or any
Bl 2 B AFIFTEIT ZE company controlled by a controlling shareholder; and

MESFFAAN R

(i) AEB(ERKE K ERIE (iii) (a) any business or joint venture partner, franchisee,

3% P B Bk g 42 R % R A contractor or distributor of,

ZERMRARZ

(@) FMEBXEHEER (b) any person or entity that provides research,
R RYE development or other technological support or
A EBE D HE any advisory, consultancy, professional or other
G services in respect of business operations to,

(b) fE{] A =3k 16 88 12 1 (c) any supplier of goods or services to, or

fios s BRIHEAME
M EREMMFEA

BB E M
BEEEBE RS -
(c) EMTIRMG 2 Efm4 (d) any customer of goods or services of,
(d) EmERB 2 EMNE any member of the Group or any controlling
oo shareholder or a company controlled by a controlling
shareholder.
20025 5TEIME - 2HEAR For the purposes of the 2002 Scheme, the participants
R EZMUFE U A shall include any company controlled by one or more
AP 2MEERIEH ZEMD persons belonging to any of the above classes of
Al o participants.

Y
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31. B (&)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

AFRITEEREE LR

REEREH RS E
53,490,760% & i@ g (FHF R
ARFBEITRABE61%) 7 T
AT -

BUSRATERER LR

B 4R 4% 20024 71 &l 2 5 K S 1T
AN - BRI EAEERT
—EARN(EERHERES B
1F) - iR ¥ 20024 5 &8 R A A
B ) H fth B8 A% 4 51 8 BT 3%
2B (BIED N - BITE
R ARITHEZ BARE) F AT
B BTk ET I RD E
RS HBLI%AAAR BT
B A o

TREBREIBEBERZB
PR

MELBEEZBREFTFR
XARRBEERNEHEPTE
EH B HIE -

BREETERLARARE
HARR (W A)

REHBRER  ARFES
[ 1% 15 7€ B B 10 AT 1T (2 A 0
ARAZREHMR (WE) -
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31. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

S,

Maximum number of ordinary shares available for issue

A total of 53,490,760 ordinary shares is available for issue
which represents approximately 8.61% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of this annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum number of ordinary shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of share options granted under the
2002 Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company to any participant (including cancelled, exercised
and outstanding share options), in any 12-month period up
to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the ordinary
shares in issue unless otherwise approved in accordance
with the terms of the 2002 Scheme.

Period within which the ordinary shares must be taken
up under a share option

Within ten years from the date of grant of the share option
or such shorter period as the board of directors of the
Company determines at the time of grant.

Minimum period, if any, for which a share option must
be held before it can be exercised

At the time of granting a share option, the board of
directors of the Company will determine the minimum
period(s), if any, for which a share option must be held
before it can be exercised.
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31. B (&)

(g)

(h)

(i

EABRESNEERCRS
A PR

EREBREENZAE (B
ZHA)A+TARANARZABZ
BH - REIXBNBEREZY
- HE#1.007T -

BRETEEEEZEXE

TEERERETXNZEK
BPTEESHARREER
RTE - EITEEBAEEL BT

ReE

() BXARREAHELZ
FRMERMMZ EBK
WHEBE(ERLEARRSD
H) :

(i) BERXATREEFR DB S
TEBXARXSBE#ELNZ
FRMERMMZ EBK
FHRHE &

(i) HAKRZEE -

2002 T ISR T 2 AR
Br IR R 20026 5T &GRSR 1T/
AN - 20024 7 & 2 B M F

BTE THER_ZT—=—FN
B-+=HE®

Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2006

31. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(g)

(h)

(i)

Amount payable upon acceptance of a share option and
the period within which the payment must be made

An offer for the grant of a share option must be accepted
within forty-five days inclusive of the day on which the offer
was made. The amount payable on acceptance of the offer
for an option is HK$1.00.

Basis of determining the exercise price of the share
options

The exercise price per share payable on the exercise of a
share option shall be determined by the board of directors
of the Company and shall be no less than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the ordinary shares as stated in
the daily quotation sheet issued by the Stock
Exchange on the date of offer of grant, which must be
a business day;

(ii) the average closing price of the ordinary shares as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange for the five business days

immediately preceding the date of offer of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of an ordinary share.
Remaining life of the 2002 Scheme
The 2002 Scheme has a life of ten years and will expire on

23 August 2012 unless otherwise terminated in
accordance with the terms of the 2002 Scheme.

£y
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31. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

Scheme and 1996 Scheme during the year:

The following share options were outstanding under the 2002

i
BREZ
BRE EhiEz AREE*
Rt AH TEHR Exercise
SEAZREZER Date of Exercise price of
Name or category BREHA grant of period of share
of participants Number of share options share options* share options  options**
RZZZRE FARE ERENE EAXM RIBBARE
mA—H Granted  Exercised Forfeited =A=1—8
At 1 April during during during At 31 March
2005 the year the year the year 2006
(B/F/%) (B/R/%) BT
(DIMIY) (DIMAY) HK$
EZQTERE
Director or substantial
shareholder
EE 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2006 - 10/3/2013 1.988
Chen CHIANG 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2008 - 10/3/2013 1.988
2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
BB 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 31/8/2001  31/8/2006 - 28/2/2009 1.050
Lai Yuen CHIANG 666,000 - - - 666,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2006 - 10/3/2013 1.988
668,000 - - - 668,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2008 - 10/3/2013 1.988
3,334,000 - - - 3,334,000
BER 400,000 - - - 400,000 31/8/2001  31/8/2006 - 28/2/2009 1.050
Chi Kin CHIANG 334,000 - - - 334,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2006 - 10/3/2013 1.988
334,000 - - - 334,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2008 - 10/3/2013 1.988
1,068,000 - - - 1,068,000
BHR 400,000 - - - 400,000 31/8/2001  31/8/2006 - 28/2/2009 1.050
Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG 332,000 - - - 332,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2004 - 10/3/2013 1.988
334,000 - - - 334,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2006 - 10/3/2013 1.988
334,000 - - - 334,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2008 - 10/3/2013 1.988
1,400,000 - - - 1,400,000

)
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31. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

BREZ
BREZ BREZ ARE™
B A TSR Exercise
SRAZEERER Date of Exercise price of
Name or category EREHA grant of period of share
of participants Number of share options share options* share options  options**
RZEZRF  FARE EREAE ERERNRZBERE
mA-A Granted Exercised Forfeited ZA=1+—H
At 1 April during during during At 31 March
2005 the year the year the year 2006
(B/R/5) (B/R/5) BT
(DIM/Y) (DIM/Y) HK$
REE 332,000 - (332,000) - - 11/3/2003  11/3/2005 - 10/3/2013 1.988
Sam Hon Wah NG 334,000 - - - 334,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2007 - 10/3/2013 1.988
334,000 - - - 334,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2009 - 10/3/2013 1.988
1,000,000 - (332,000) - 668,000
EEREERAT 600,000 - - - 600,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2006 - 10/3/2013 1.988
Chen Hsong Investments 600,000 - - - 600,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2008 - 10/3/2013 1.988
Limited
1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000
/N5FSubtotal 10,002,000 - (332,000) - 9,670,000
EE(RESH
Employees (other than
directors)
2 500,000 - - - 500,000 31/8/2001  31/8/2006 - 28/2/2009 1.050
In aggregate 42,000 - - - 42,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2004 - 10/3/2013 1.988
110,000 - (10,000)  (100,000) - 11/3/2003  11/3/2005 - 10/3/2013 1.988
1,100,000 - (90,000)  (236,000) 774,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2006 - 10/3/2013 1.988
370,000 - - (260,000) 110,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2007 - 10/3/2013 1.988
1,108,000 - - (238,000) 870,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2008 - 10/3/2013 1.988
370,000 - - (260,000) 110,000 11/3/2003  11/3/2009 - 10/3/2013 1.988
/|\it Subtotal 3,600,000 - (100,000)  (1,094,000) 2,406,000
@5t Total 13,602,000 - (432,000) (1,094,000) 12,076,000

3,
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* %

BhEzEEHRDAEREAHE
ETEHRMABAL -

fHE AR B » IRAA AR E A
PO BRE 2 TEEN T

A -

izt

(1)

(3)

(4)

EHREELLERIEE (BRES
SN IBTE 2 ERENREETER
Bl — K Z I F 9 R 45 W E 5 5l
ABBHE3.9757T KB ¥ 4.6987T °

RIFE2002F 5T Sl G H X L BRE 2
HRERBELOOT -

MBS MR EEI0M R - REFENR -
432,0000% #8 P #E % 17 (£ B2 8 17
432,0000 & X E (B ¥ 0.10T &
NAE BB RERGTARITEAR
FE N AR A E ¥ 43,0007T M B 1) 4 B
#978%816,0007T °

RZBEXRF=ZR=+—0 AR
BIRIE1996%F 7t 8 12 20024 5+ 8 7
7l % 3,300,000/% (ZZEZ 1 % :
3,300,0004%) % 8,776,000/% (=&
TR ¢ 10,302,0008%) fE A% 4 1 R
TTE © G RTT 2 B A 2 B 8
T8 - KRR BIRE 2 B ARG -
1% & B 1TH5M12,076,0000% & K H
ERK0.10T 2 T BIRRAERGA
E o] #E A A £ 3517 & 3 B G AN A AR
#)78%1,208,0007T K B 17 (B 4078
#19,704,0007T ©
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31. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant
until the commencement of the exercise period.

The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in
the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
Company’s share capital.

Notes:

(1)

(3)

(4)

2

The weighted average closing prices of the share immediately
before the dates on which the options were exercised by Mr. Sam
Hon Wah NG and “Employees (other than directors)” are
HK$3.975 and HK$4.698 respectively.

The share options granted under the 2002 Scheme are for a
consideration of HK$1.00 per grant.

The 432,000 share options exercised during the year resulted in
the issue of 432,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the
Company and new share capital of HK$43,000 and share
premium of approximately HK$816,000 (before issue expenses),
as detailed in note 30 to the financial statements.

As at 31 March 2006, the Company had 3,300,000 (2005:
3,300,000) and 8,776,000 (2005: 10,302,000) share options
outstanding under the 1996 Scheme and the 2002 Scheme
respectively. The exercise in full of the share options outstanding
would, under the present capital structure of the Company, result
in the issue of 12,076,000 additional ordinary shares of HK$0.10
each of the Company and additional
approximately HK$1,208,000 and
approximately HK$19,704,000 (before issue expenses).

share capital of

share premium of
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32. #fE 32. RESERVES

rEE

AEBAFERBEFENFER
HE R MK E58E 608 F &Y
RAEEREPHRTEY -

REERRERTE - BBEWRND
BR A A R BB DERA
BIAK—HBEEFEREE T
ARBEZEARFEBER - HEZER
r%ﬁL & QB EWRE AS0%E -
BUAHEBETER - MZE A
ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁf\#ﬁfﬁ%%@ - R#EE R
ZEANGHERB 36,113,000 (=
TERF : BH35318,0007T) °

REDEHINGEEREZED -
ARRRFEZETHEBRRRAE
BEOBREENEARTEFE (L SK
RHMER R  BEEZARER
BB EESHEMEARS0% -

RZZEZRFHNA-—BHRABTEY
BmEEREIN - AEBRMERE
o WK EAREREE NS R
T o

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 58 to 60
of the financial statements.

In accordance with the Company Law of Taiwan, Asian Plastic
Machinery Company, Limited and Chen Hsong Machinery
Taiwan Company, Limited are required to transfer a portion of
their profits after tax to a capital reserve, which is non-
distributable. When the capital reserve has accumulated to 50%
of the capital, up to 50% of the capital reserve may be
capitalised. The capital reserve may be utilised at any time to
offset any deficit. At the balance sheet date, such capital
reserve amounted to HK$36,113,000 (2005: HK$35,318,000).

In accordance with the Law of the PRC on Sole Foreign
Investment Enterprises, certain of the Company’s PRC
subsidiaries are required to transfer a portion of their profit after
tax to the statutory reserve fund, which are restricted to use,
until the accumulated total reaches 50% of their registered
capital.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 3 on 1 April 2005, the Negative
Goodwill was derecognised with a corresponding adjustment to
the opening balance of retained profits.

W
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32. f#&fE (&) 32. RESERVES (continued)
Bt EAEE
BER e Ex
Share Capital e BHERH  REEA
b N Company premium  redemption Capital Contributed  Retained @t
(B&F1T) (HK$'000) account reserve reserve surplus profits Total
R-_ZZEMFMA—-H At 1 April 2004
ma 2% As previously reported 486,926 295 - 42 484 45,449 575,154
AR E 9% (B 5E2.4(b)) Prior year adjustment (note 2.4(b)) - - 740 - (740) -
mE5 As restated 486,926 295 740 42,484 44,709 575,154
RERFEN (BEF]) Net profit for the year (as restated) - - - 17241 117,241
BATH MR (F13E30) Issue of new shares (note 30) 2,444 - - - - 2444
MAREZ () Equity-settled share option
Bz arrangements - 740 - - 740
ERZRAET Transfer to retained profits - - - (42,484) 42 484 -
BE_ZTMF Final dividend for the
ZA=t+-Hit year ended
FRIRERE 31 March 2004 - - - - (74,097) (74,097)
RS (M3E13) Interim dividend (note 13) - - - - (30,895)  (30,895)
RZFZRE=A=t-H At 31 March 2005 489,370 295 1,480 - 99,442 590,587
RZZTREMA-A At 1 April 2005
JURTE As previously reported 489,370 295 - - 100,922 590,587
AR 3% (FHE2.4(b)) Prior year adjustment (note 2.4(b)) - - 1,480 - (1,480) -
&5 As restated 489,370 295 1,480 - 99,442 590,587
FEEFRF Net profit for the year - - - - 123339 123,339
TR (M3230) Issue of new shares (note 30) 816 - - - - 816
AR S A Equity-settled share option
BRERHE arrangements - - 874 - - 874
BE-ZTRF=A=T+—HIL  Final dividend for the
FEZRERE year ended 31 March 2005
(M3E13) (note 13) - - - - (86,594) (86,594)
AR B (MR 13) Interim dividend (note 13) - - - (309260  (30,926)
RZZEXFE=ZA=1+—H At 31 March 2006 490,186 295 2,354 - 105,261 598,096

9
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32.

RESERVES (continued)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess
of the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the Group’s reorganisation in September 1991 over
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the
Company may make distributions to its members out of the

therefor.

contributed surplus in certain circumstances.

RAREME 33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
REER  RERUKERERBEEZ As at the balance sheet date, contingent liabilities not provided
HABERT : for in the financial statements were as follows:
KEME KAF
Group Company
(BT ) (HK$°000) 2006 2005 2006 2005
RETE=EEEM Guarantees given to financial
LTSRN ER institutions in connection with
RAREEE facilities granted to certain
third parties, at the maximum 92,137 87,868 - -
R THBARGEE Guarantees given to banks in
RESETHER connection with facilities
granted to subsidiaries - - 787,018 601,200
92,137 87,868 787,018 601,200

RZZEZERF=ZA=1T—H8 &R
ARG THEAREEMREMAR
THREREERBEERNEE
135,873,000t (ZZE T RHF : B
178,000,0007T) °

As at 31 March 2006, the guarantees given by the Company to
banks in connection with facilities granted to subsidiaries were
utilised to the extent of approximately HK$135,873,000 (2005:
HK$178,000,000).

9
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i

iy RZEZERF=ZA= +—d

REBDENEARBEHE AR
AEAMBARNPEERT
¥ZEME H LB 2,995,000
ﬁ(::%;fﬁi okt
7,679,0007T) ° —EERE
zﬂz+—av$%lmﬁ%
EVE BMERREFIEMNE
REE(ZZEZRF : BK
978,0007T) °

(i)
ZN

N
= S

=
=<

]
S
H O

m HEenzx
Eil

AWI
\
%

=

42,775,0007T) ©

REER » KRRREERMAE -
BEALXRS

FA BRI R E A B AT

BRERN  AKEEBAATHEH
BALRS

(a) 7<% [ LA #48,673,0005T (=
T : B¥38,696,0007T)
M — B & R B DA SR S R S P
RECHANEEEREREER
B

o REBEE—FERF
EERAKK CRIDARA
Al BEEEBE3,610,000T

—TTRF : B¥2,119,000
TU) ZIRM Y o IR B AR
FER 5
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34. COMMITMENTS

(i)

(ii)

As at 31 March 2006, the Group had capital commitments,
which were contracted but not provided for, in respect of
the construction of industrial buildings in the PRC relating
to certain subsidiaries amounting to approximately
HK$2,995,000 (2005: HK$7,679,000). As at 31 March
2006, the Group had no capital commitment in respect of
the purchase of items of property, plant and equipment
(2005: HK$978,000).

As at 31 March 2006, the Group had no commitment
under forward foreign exchange contracts (2005:

HK$42,775,000).

At the balance sheet date, the Company had no significant

commitment.

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in these financial

statements, the Group also had the following related party

transactions during the year:

(a)

O

The Group purchased raw materials amounting to
HK$48,673,000 (2005: HK$38,696,000)
associate at prices and on terms similar to those offered by

from an

unrelated suppliers of the Group.

In addition, the Group purchased raw materials of
HK$3,610,000 (2005: HK$2,119,000) from a related
company, Zhenjian Mould & Machinery (Shenzhen)
Company Limited. These transactions were also continuing

connected transactions.
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) The related company is the associate of Dr. Chen Chiang,
Ms. Lai Yuen Chiang and Mr. Chi Kin Chiang, the directors
of the Company. The terms of the above transactions were
conducted with prices and terms mutually agreed by the
Group and the related company.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

rEE Group

CEMFr) (HK$'000) 2006 2005

HHEB R Short term employee benefits 31,874 27,883

ZEE ST Post employment benefits - -

ERIRBER AT Share-based payments 643 651
32,517 28,534

MREFMESHFAEHNER
BRI MR O BE -

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in
note 9 to the financial statements.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and
bank balances, bank loans, trade and bills receivables, and
trade and bills payable.

The main risks arising from the financial instruments are cash
flow interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and credit risk
which are summarised below:

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the cash flow interest rate risk
primarily relates to its bank loans with floating interest rates.
The Group monitors its interest rate exposure closely and
considers taking measures to reduce significant interest
exposure.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s foreign exchange risk arises from commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in operations in Mainland China and Taiwan.

The Group has transactional currency exposures mainly in U.S.
dollars. The foreign currency risk exposure for U.S. dollars is
minimal due to the currency peg and that for other foreign
currencies has been covered by forward exchange contracts.

The Group reduces the foreign currency risk exposure on its
investments in Taiwan with appropriate levels of borrowings in
Taiwan dollar. Whereas the investments in Mainland China will
benefit from the appreciation of Renminbi.

Credit risk

The Group gives credit to customers by reference to their
respective business strength and creditability, and strict credit
control policies are in place over trade receivables. The Group
has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure
spread over a large number of customers.

N
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37.

38.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in notes 2.2 and 2.4 to the financial
statements, due to the adoption of new and revised HKFRSs
during the current year, the accounting treatment and
presentation of certain items and balances in the financial
statements have been revised to comply with the new
requirements. Accordingly, certain prior year and opening
balance adjustments have been made and certain comparative
amounts have been reclassified and restated to conform with
the current year’s presentation and accounting treatment.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 19 July 2006.
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